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L CORPORATE INFORM

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors:

HUI Sai Chung (Chairman)

HUI Kwok Kwong (Deputy Chairman and Managing Director)
DrWONG Chi Ying, Anthony

LAl Kam Wah

CHING Yu Lung

LIV Sau Lai

Independent Non-executive Directors:
HO Wai Chi, Paul

FONG Pong Hing

CHAN Dit Lung

COMPANY SECRETARY
CHINGYu Lung

AUDIT COMMITTEE

HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman)
FONG Pong Hing

CHAN Dit Lung

BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
The Bank of East Asia, Limited

AUDITORS
PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

PUBLIC RELATIONS CONSULTANT

Strategic Financial Relations Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2003/2004

HITEE:

e ()

AP (B AR
wrEmt

RmE

B

B% g

BUHHTESE !
o] fi¢ it
UET
PR Bk HE

NGIE)E
2 e

ERERS
e (&4 fr EHF)
TR

bR Bk E

ERBRTT
it bl S AT A R R
FURERATAT R 7

72 L]
BB SC UK it 55 5
BB

DHEBERER
BT RER AR



. = -
. - -

| W e a8 3

' -e

LCORPORATE INFORMATI

T —

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM|I |

Bermuda

PRINCIPAL OFFICE
Unit 3, 6th Floor

Hopeful Factory Centre
|0 Wo Shing Street
FoTan

New Territories

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL REGISTRARS (IN BERMUDA)
Butterfield Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
Rosebank Centre

Bermudiana Road

Hamilton

Bermuda

BRANCH REGISTRARS (IN HONG KONG)
Abacus Share Registrars Limited

G/F, Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre
56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai
Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
1047

WEBSITE
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr HUI Sai Chung, aged 57, is a co-founder of the Group. He is responsible for
formulating and overseeing the implementation of the Group's business strategy. He
is also responsible for the marketing and sales functions of the Group. He has more

than 34 years' experience in the plastics industry.

Mr HUI Kwok Kwong, aged 55, is a co-founder of the Group. He is responsible
for the overall operations and administration of the Group. He has more than 34

years' experience in the plastics industry.

Dr WONG Chi Ying, Anthony, aged 48, is the Vice Chairman and the Chief
Operating Officer of Shanghai Ngai Hing Plastic Materials Co., Ltd. and Tsing Tao
Ngai Hing Plastic Materials Co., Ltd. He is responsible for overseeing the production
operations in Shanghai and Qingdao, in-charging the newly established R&D Centre
of the Group, as well as developing business activities and opportunities for the
Group. Before joining the Group in the present capacity, Dr Wong was an Associate
Professor in the Department of Industrial and Manufacturing Systems Engineering of
The University of Hong Kong. He holds a B.Tech (Hons) degree and a Ph.D degree
in chemical engineering and is also a Chartered Engineer, Chartered Scientist, a
corporate member of The Institution of Chemical Engineers and a member of The
Hong Kong Institution of Engineers. He had worked for two multinational chemical
companies prior to taking up a lecturer post with The University of Hong Kong in
1986. He is currently a member of the Editorial Advisory Board of the Journal of

Adhesion Science and Technology.

Mr LAI Kam Wah, aged 53, is the Deputy Managing Director of the Company and
the Chief Operating Officer of Hong Kong Colour Technology Ltd. and Dongguan
Ngai Hing Plastic Materials Ltd. He is responsible for overseeing the production
operations in Hong Kong and Dongguan. Mr Lai holds a Master of Arts degree and
is @ member of the Law Society of Hong Kong, England and Wales and Australian
Capital Territory. He has been practicing law for over 20 years. He is also an
Associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Arbitrators, a Member of the Chartered
Institute of Arbitrators, a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors, Manager of
two secondary schools in Hong Kong, and Member of the Panel of Adjudicators of

the Control of Obscene and Indecent Articles Ordinance.
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) SENIOR MANAG.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Cont'd)

Mr CHING Yu Lung, aged 34, is the Finance Director and Company Secretary of
the Group. He holds a bachelor degree in Business Administration and is a Fellow
Member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, an Associate
Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member
of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has over |2 years'
experience in auditing, finance and accounting and is responsible for the financial and

treasury management of the Group.

Madam LIU Sau Lai, aged 46, is responsible for personnel and office
administration of the Group. She joined the Group in 1977.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul, aged 53, is the precedent partner of Paul W. C. Ho &
Company, Certified Public Accountants. He holds a Bachelor degree in Social
Sciences and is an associate member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales, United Kingdom and a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr FONG Pong Hing, aged 54, is the Managing Director of Cathay Pigments
Awustralasia Pty Ltd (“Cathay Pigments") in Australia. Cathay Pigments specializes in
the manufacture and trading of inorganic pigments in the Australian market. Mr. Fong
obtained a Master of Philosophy (Chemistry) degree from The Chinese University of
Hong Kong in 1975. Before he retired from Du Pont China Limited in July 2003, he
had spent most of his career working for multinational chemicals and technology
companies covering the Hong Kong and the Greater China area with emphasis in

engineering plastics market.

Mr CHAN Dit Lung, aged 54, is the Managing Director of Wellknown Plastic
Material Ltd. He holds a Bachelor degree in Social Science and has more than 20
years' experience in plastic trading. He was formerly a lecturer of Hong Kong Plastics
Technology Centre in Polytechnic University. He is now the Chairman of Hong Kong
Plastic Material Suppliers Association, President of Hong Kong Plastics Recycling
Association, Vice President of The Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong
Industries, Convener of Hong Kong Business Community Joint Conference and

Director of Hong Kong Plastics Technology Centre.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr NG Tat Ching, Ben, aged 49, Director of Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic
Materials Limited, is responsible for marketing and product management of
engineering plastic materials for the Group. He holds a Bachelor degree in chemistry
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr Ng joined the Group in 1997 and
has over 23 years' experience in the plastics industry globally. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr Ng has held several key positions in various multinational companies for

engineering plastic materials sales and marketing in Asia Pacific regions.

Mr FONG Kwok Mo, aged 45, is the General Manager of Shanghai Ngai Hing
Plastic Materials Co.,, Ltd. and Tsing Tac Ngai Hing Plastic Materials Co., Ltd. He holds
a certificate in textile technology from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University's predecessor) and is responsible for overseeing the
operations of the Group in Shanghai and Qingdao, the People’s Republic of China
(the "PRC"). He joined the Group in 1992 and has 23 years' experience in

production management.

Mr NG Chi Ming, aged 39, is the General Manager of Hong Kong Colour
Technology Ltd and Dongguan Ngai Hing Plastic Materials Ltd. He is responsible for
overseeing the overall operations of the factories in Hong Kong and Dongguan,
PRC. He holds a higher diploma in textile chemistry from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic (The Hong Kong Polytechnic University's predecessor). He joined the
Group in 1988 and left in 1995. He re-joined the Group in early 1998 and has over

|5 years' experience in plastic colouration and plastic injection moulding techniques.

Mr CHUNG Si Leung, Ricky, aged 46, is a Director of Ngai Hing Engineering
Plastic Materials Limited and is responsible for sales of engineering plastic materials
for the Group. He holds a Bachelor degree in chemistry from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He joined the Group in 1999 and has over 22 years'

experience in the plastics industry.

Mr WONG Chi Hang, Eric, aged 33, is the General Manager of Ngai Hing Hong
Plastic Materials Limited and is responsible for the sales and marketing in the
Group's trading business. He holds a Bachelor degree in chemistry from The
University of Hong Kong and a Master degree in Business Administration from the
University of South Australia. He joined the Group in 1994 and has over 10 years'

experience in sales & marketing.
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DIRECT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

Dr LAM Kwok Kin, Joseph, aged 58, is a Director and General Manager of Ngai
Hing PlastChem Company Limited. He is responsible for overseeing the operation of
PVC compounds. He holds a Ph.D. degree in Chemistry and had worked for a
multinational chemical company for |7 years and was responsible for the sales,
marketing, technical service and regional management of specialty additives products
in the Asia-Pacific region. He is experienced in application and new product
development for a range of industries including PVC, plastics, masterbatch, coating,

water-base & solvent-base dispersions, hot-melt and cable & wire.

Mr YIP Yik Wai, Roy, aged 48, is a Director of Ngai Hing PlastChem Company
Limited. He is responsible for the manufacturing, marketing and sales of PVC
compounds. He has over 25 years' experience in the plastics and chemical business

covering the greater China and South East Asia region.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

| am pleased to announce the audited results of Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
(“the Company") and its subsidiaries (collectively “the Group") for the year ended
30th June 2004.The Group recorded a consolidated turnover of HK$1,017,775,000
(2003: HK$874,976,000) and profit attributable to shareholders of HK$ 13,279,000
(2003: HK$40,462,000) during the year. Earnings per share for the year amounted to
HK4.43 cents (2003: HK13.49 cents). The Board recommended the payment of a
final dividend of HK2.0 cents (2003: HK5.0 cents) per share. Together with the
interim dividend of HKI1.0 cent (2003: HK3.0 cents) per share, the total dividend
payment for the year under review will amount to HK3.0 cents (2003: 8.0 cents) per

share.

BUSINESS REVIEW

2004 marks the |0th anniversary of the Group's listing in Hong Kong. Over the past
decade, Ngai Hing Hong has managed to seize the many sprouting business
opportunities in the market and achieve quick and robust growth. Its consolidated

turnover for the year shot through the HK$ | billion threshold.

The past year was challenging for the Group. The outbreak of the bird flu, the
introduction of economic austerity measures in China and the increase in costs of
raw materials triggered by the persistently high crude oil price had adversely
affected the business environment in Asia. However, with a rock solid foundation and
focused business strategies, the Group not only was able to rise above the different
challenges, but also turned them into opportunities. During the year, the Group

kicked off one important investment, paving the way for the Group's future growth.
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During the year, the Group succeeded in expanding into a new business - the
manufacture and sale of PVC compounds. In May 2004, our new plant in Dongguan
commenced operation to provide to both the overseas and domestic markets PVC
compounds for use in the production of electrical wires and cables, sockets and toys.
The Group expects this new business segment to emerge as a strong growth driver
and start contributing profit in the coming financial year. Through implementing
aggressive sales and marketing strategies, the Group successfully broadened its
customer base and achieved significant growth in both orders and sales price,

increasing the Group's consolidated turnover by 16.3% over that of last year.

Having to weather the substantial increase in the costs of raw materials brought on
by the surge in crude oil price, plus the deployment of extra resources into the new
plant and in developing the new PVC business, the Group's production and
operating costs increased and its overall profit margin narrowed during the year.
However, the Group has full confidence that the returns from the new business and
new customers will be fully reflected in its results in the coming financial year. In
addition, the Group made strategic efforts during the year to expand its production
capacity and sales network. These efforts, which included the establishment of new
plants in Shanghai and Hong Kong and a new office in Xiamen, are expected to bear

fruit in the coming year.

During the period under review, the Group’s high margin engineering plastics
manufacturing segment reported outstanding performance. Rising market demand
for engineering plastics plus the Group's stringent product quality control
underscored the persistently strong customer demand for the Group's products, and
the strong demand translated into continuous turnover growth. As for the
colourants business, riding on the keen market demand for film grade masterbatches,
the Group secured many new customers and recorded steady growth in turnover

from the business segment.
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During the year, the Group's plastics trading business recorded significant growth in
turnover, with Ngai Hing (GZFTZ) Trading Co., Ltd. ("NHGZ") in Guangzhou
reporting satisfactory performance. Besides actual financial returns, NHGZ also
embodies the Group's determination to expand its business in the PRC market,
helping the Group to broaden its customer networks in Southern China and

cementing the Group's foundation for long-term development in the market.

PROSPECTS

Although the global economy has yet to fully rebound, it has been recovering at a
pace quicker than expected. In the light of continuous improvement in the global
economy and consumption sentiment, the Group is optimistic about its prospects in
the coming year. Looking forward, the Group will focus on expanding its customer
base and trimming production costs so as to achieve maximum production efficiency
and economies of scale while at the same time meeting immense market demand

for plastics products.

The Group sees vast growth potential in the PRC market and economy. It will
actively seek to capture this important market in the coming years leveraging the
Closer Economic Partnership Arrangement (CEPA) signed recently between
Mainland China and Hong Kong. To ensure continuing optimum returns from the
PRC market, the Group will strive to fully exploit its resources in Guangzhou and
Shanghai. The move will allow it to further expand its business in the burgeoning
China market, in particular eastern China, and to boost its existing competitive

advantages,

Meanwhile, to ensure steady business growth, the Group is committed to stepping
up its R&D efforts and has scheduled to set up a new R&D center in Shanghai by
2005. It will also continue to recruit professionals with extensive industrial and
technical knowledge to assist the development of more innovative products. The
Group is dedicated to providing customers with the highest quality products and
premium value-added services, which it believes will help to strengthen its

competitiveness in the market and expand its income sources.
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With the Group's new plant progressing into full operation during the year, both the
Group's overall production capacity and potential for growth were significantly
enhanced. Looking ahead, the Group will continue to use its best endeavour to
exercise stringent costs control to increase cost efficiencies in production. The
Group will also forge ahead with its promising new PVC compounds business, which
is expected to broaden the Group's income base and bump up its overall results in

the next financial year.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated cashflow and
banking facilities provided by its principal bankers. As at 30th June 2004, the Group has
available aggregate bank loan facilities of approximately HK$ 173,370,000, of which
HK$123,431,000 have been utilised and were secured by corporate guarantee issued
by the Company and legal charges on certain leasehold land and buildings in the PRC
and Hong Kong owned by the Group (see note || to the accounts). The Group’s cash
and bank balances and short term bank deposits as at 30th June 2004 amounted to
approximately HK$51,303,000. The Group's gearing ratio as at 30th June 2004 was
approximately 49.7%., based on the total bank borrowings of approximately
HK$123,431,000, together with obligations under finance leases of HK$18,663,000 and
the shareholders’ funds of approximately HK$286,184,000.

Details of the Group's capital commitments and the Company's contingent liabilities

are disclosed in notes 21 and 22 to the accounts respectively.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group's borrowings and cash balances are primarily denominated in Hong Kong
dollars. The Group's purchases were principally denominated in US dollars. The
Group closely monitors currency fluctuations and reduces its exchange risk by

hedging with forward exchange contracts from time to time.
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At 30th June 2004, the Group had maximum outstanding commitments in respect of

forward contracts in order to hedge the Group's exposure in foreign currencies
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from its operations as follows: ZEHBNZZRREENT
2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FAET
Sell HK dollars for US dollars EATUBAZER 436,660 —
EMPLOYEE INFORMATION ESER

As at 30th June 2004, the Group had approximately 800 full-time employees. The
Group's emolument policies are formulated on the performance of individual
employees and are reviewed annually. The Group has an incentive scheme which is
geared to the profit of the Group and the performance of its employees, as an
incentive to motivate its employees to increase their contribution to the Group. The
Group also provides social and medical insurance coverage, and provident fund
scheme (as the case may be) to its employees depending on the location of such

employees.

APPRECIATION

| would like to express my gratitude to our suppliers, customers and shareholders
for their unfailing support. My thanks also go to my fellow directors, executives and
staff for their outstanding performance and contribution during the past year ridden
with challenges. The Group will as always, with prudence and conviction, seek to
secure long-term development and the most satisfactory return to shareholders. |
am confident that the Group will be able to attain more prosperous results for the

coming year.

HUI Sai Chung

Chairman

Hong Kong,
| 3th October 2004
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited accounts for the year
ended 30th June 2004.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities

of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 25 to the accounts.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by geographical segment is set

out in note 2 to the accounts.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated profit and loss

account on page 33.

The Directors have declared an interim dividend of HK1.0 cent per ordinary share,
totalling HK$3,000,000, which was paid on |6th April 2004,

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK2.0 cents per
ordinary share, totalling HK$6,000,000.

EEeENREEZ-_TTNFAAZTAL
FRZBEERGEELEE -

IEXBREMBEIZEERR
ARAZEBEBRARAER EXEMEL
Al T EEFABANR A K25 -

ARMBHER D 2 QERADHHNRE K
2

XERIE
AEERAENERAZE/BHER

EEECN-_EENEMATABEEPHE
BEMR1.0%E » 5£3,000,000% 7T °

EFERARERMBESR20EW - a4
6,000,000 7T
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RESERVES
Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the year are set

out in note |7 to the accounts.

FIXED ASSETS

The Company did not own any fixed assets during the year.

Details of the movements in fixed assets of the Group during the year are set out in

note || to the accounts.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 30th June 2004, the reserves of the Company available for distribution,
comprising the contributed surplus and retained earnings, amounted to
approximately HK$69,842,000 (2003: HK$77,705,000).

Under The Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), a company may not
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus, if there
are reasonable grounds for believing that (i) the company is, or would after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; (ii) the realisable value
of the Company's assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities

and its issued share capital and share premium account.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last

five financial years is set out on page 78.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Bye-laws and

there are no restrictions against such rights under the laws in Bermuda.

ANNUAL REPORT 2003/2004

f#f
ARERARRIFANER L ZDFBEHNEE
PEE17

BE&E
ARERAFREEERTNETERE -

AEERAFERTEEZ SBHNKRE M
11

A#2 KRB

REZZWEA=1H ' FARARIIEZ
RE(BEREGEZRREEEN) DA
69,842,000 7T (=TT =% : 77,705,0007%
L) °

REBAFRE-NN\—FRAE (EEF]) * WA
AREMBEN2RARNRNREKELERS
REREIBEZFELNHZEE A AT
REZAEABEERAMENERARAD
BORARBRNEELE - AZARATEE
RN R ERERBBHFFELDIK o

EFEHMBHRE
AEARBERENBERE 2 XS - EERA
AENFET8E -

ERBRE
ENCIPANGEETE 23 VS i S s
E - MBEREENMENZFEN L ERR
i o



PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'S
LISTED SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Company's

listed securities during the year.

SHARE OPTIONS

On 5th December 2002, the Company has adopted a new share option scheme
(the "New Scheme") and terminated the old share option scheme. Under the terms
of the New Scheme, the Directors may, at their discretion, invite Directors and
employees of the Group to take up options (the “Share Options”) to subscribe for

shares in the Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated therein.

Details of the New Scheme are as follows:

(i)  Purpose
The New Scheme is designed to give Directors and employees of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries an equity interest in the Company in order
to enhance long-term shareholder value. The granting of Share Options will
also help the Company to attract and motivate individuals with experience and

ability and to reward individuals for past and future performance.

(i)  Qualifying participants
Any employee including any Director of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

(iii) Maximum number of shares

The maximum number of shares subject to the New Scheme must not when
aggregated with any shares subject to any other share option schemes exceed
10% of the shares in issue from time to time (excluding any shares which have
been duly allotted and issued upon the exercise of the Share Options granted
pursuant to the New Scheme and any other schemes). The total number of
shares available for issue under the New Scheme as at the date of the annual
report is 30,000,000, which is 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
as of that date.

Eizitr

BE HERREARARAZETES

ARARAFRTEROERE - ARRHE
EAMBRRRAFR T EBE XL EARF
ZLEmES o

L 1E

AR ZBRRR-_ZE_F+_ARRKRAT
MR B (TR AR 81]) - LREIUH
TEBREE - REFTBRES B ZHERR
&ty EFEINBEFRARECESZRESR
BT ZBAARRG 2 BAE ((BAE]) -

BRI EERT

(i) A&
HEREAEEENALRNENBER
RAIZERREERTHEZ  RAQFRE
RARBBEREE AT - YRS
ERBREMRAZAL MR EE
MR REE -

(i) RAKBHRE
ARAIZEMEAR 2 EMAEE (BEE
HEE) -

(iii) BEREHE

REH BB R T IUA BT 2R
By - B RRBEAELERES
JRTFUBRTZRGE  TREBTH
BEETROHZBEAZ T (TRERTEHN
BRESIREAA B EAEESR
REAZEARR) - REAFHRTER
B REFBRESITHESTZRG
% 7330,000,000%% - HERERAR
RAERTRABAZT
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SHARE OPTIONS (Cont'd)

(iii) Maximum number of shares (Cont'd)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

The maximum entitlement for any one qualifying participant is that the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the Share Options
granted to each qualifying participant under the New Scheme and any other
option schemes (including exercised and outstanding Share Options) in any

|2-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue.

Option period

In respect of any particular Share Option, such period the Board of Directors
may in its absolute discretion determine, save that such period shall not expire
more than 10 years from the date on which a Share Option is granted and

accepted by the grantee.

Amount payable on application or acceptance

An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for acceptance for a
period of 28 days from the date of grant. An offer of the grant of the Share
Obption shall be deemed to have been accepted and to have taken effect when
a letter comprising acceptance of the Share Option duly signed by the grantee

is received by the Company.

Exercise price

The exercise price in respect of any particular option shall be (i) the closing
price of the shares of the Company as stated in The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited's (the “Stock Exchange") daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant, (ii) the average price of the shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant or (iii) the nominal value of the share (whichever

is the greater).
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SHARE OPTIONS (Cont'd)

(vii) The remaining life of the New Scheme

Eizitr

FhRES®
(vii) 5748 B B 5t 8.2 R e HI R

The Board of Directors shall be entitled at any time within |0 years between

5th December 2002 and 4th December 2012 to offer the grant of an option

to any qualifying participants.

Details of the movements of Share Options granted under the New Scheme

during the year and outstanding as at 30th June 2004 are as follows:

EFEeAEN S -_F+-_ARBE
—E——F+-BmNA+FAKEERT
MAERSEBER LBERIE -

REMBRESHRLCBRER-F
FNFAAZTARFAZEHNT :

Number of Share Options

BREZRGEE
Granted Exercised
Date of Exercise Exercise Beginning of  during the during the End of
grant period price the year year year  the year
REAH ATEHR TER £ FARE FROE £X
Executive Directors
HOES
Mr HUI Sai Chung 2nd May 2003 2nd May 2004 to HK$0.82 1,000,000 — — 1,000,000
FHEEE —2EC=F I'st May 2009 0827
hA=A —TTMFRA-HE
ZZERAFEA-H
2nd May 2003 2nd May 2005 to HK$0.82 1,000,000 — — 1,000,000
ZEZ2=F I'st May 2009 08287
AAZH “ZRRFAACHE
—FTNFRA-R
2nd May 2003 2nd May 2006 to HK$0.82 1,000,000 — - 1,000,000
—ET=fF Ist May 2009 082 T
hA=A “TERFAA-HE
“ZTNFERA-A
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong 2nd May 2003 2nd May 2004 to HK$0.82 1,000,000 — — 1,000,000
R ZTT=F I'st May 2009 08287
AA=H “ZTTNFRA-HE
—FTNFRA-R
2nd May 2003 2nd May 2005 to HK$0.82 1,000,000 — — 1,000,000
—ET=F Ist May 2009 082
i fa = “ZTHFAAZRE
—ERNFHA-H
2nd May 2003 2nd May 2006 to HK$0.82 1,000,000 — — 1,000,000
—ERCZF I'st May 2009 082 &L
AAZH “2TRFHAZHE
ZZRNAFHEA-H
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SHARE OPTIONS (Contd) fERE e

Number of Share Options
BREZROKA

Granted Exercised

Date of Exercise Exercise Beginning of  during the during the End of
grant period price the year year year  the year
RHAH ATEHR TE® £ ERARE EFRTE £X

Executive Directors (Cont'd)

HTEE(E)
Dr WONG ChiYing, 2nd May 2003 2nd May 2004 to HK$0.82 1,000,000 — - 1,000,000
Anthony ZTT=F Ist May 2009 082 BT
sTLEET RAZH —ZENERA-RE
“ZEEAFRA-H
2nd May 2003 2nd May 2005 to HK$0.82 1,000,000 — — 1,000,000
ZER=F Ist May 2009 0828 TT
hAZH —ZZhERAZ-HE
“Z2TAFERA-A
2nd May 2003 2nd May 2006 to HK$0.82 1,000,000 — — 1,000,000
—REZE Ist May 2009 082 T
fAZH —ZTRFRAZAE
“ETNERA-B
Mr LAl Kam Wah 2nd May 2003 2nd May 2004 to HK$0.82 1,000,000 — - 1,000,000
BRELL —FE=F I'st May 2009 082 &L
hAZH “ZZMERA-HE
“EZNERA-B
2nd May 2003 2nd May 2005 to HK$0.82 1,000,000 — — 1,000,000
=t L Ist May 2009 082 & T
hAZH “EEHE0A-RE
—EENERA-B
2nd May 2003 2nd May 2006 to HK$0.82 1,000,000 — — 1,000,000
oS85 st May 2009 082#TT
hAZH —ZTRFRAC-HE
—EENERA-H
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SHARE OPTIONS (Contd) FEARE (8

Number of Share Options
BREZROKA

Granted Exercised

Date of Exercise Exercise Beginning of  during the during the End of
grant period price the year year year  the year
RHAH T EHR TEH £4 ERRE EFRTE EX

Executive Directors (Cont'd)

HTEE(E)
Mr CHING Yu Lung 2nd May 2003 2nd May 2004 to HK$0.82 1,000,000 — - 1,000,000
Bmiefks ZTT=F I'st May 2009 082 BT
TAZH —TEEERA=-RE
—EFNETRA-H
2nd May 2003 2nd May 2005 to HK$0.82 1,000,000 — — 1,000,000
—Z2T=F Ist May 2009 0828
hAZH —“EZTR¥HA-RHZE
—Z2TNAERA A
2nd May 2003 2nd May 2006 to HK$0.82 1,000,000 - o 1,000,000
—BT=F Ist May 2009 082
hAZH —EERFRA-HE
ZE2RNETRA-H
Madam LIU Sau Lai 2nd May 2003 2nd May 2004 to HK$0.82 [,000,000 — — 1,000,000
BAERXL i S SE8:3 I'st May 2009 082#7T
fA=H —TEMNFERA-RE
—ZTNERA-A
2nd May 2003 2nd May 2005 to HK$0.82 1,000,000 — - 1,000,000
It 3 - Ist May 2009 082387
hAZH —“ZZA¥RA-RE
—“EENERA-H
2nd May 2003 2nd May 2006 to HK$0.82 1,000,000 — - 1,000,000
—TR=F I'st May 2009 08277
fAZH —EERERA-RE
—EENETRA-H
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SHARE OPTIONS (Cont'd) IR (8)
Number of Share Options
BREZRGO#E
Granted Exercised
Date of Exercise Exercise Beginning of  during the during the End of
grant period price the year year year  the year
RHAH ATEHR TE® £ ERRE ERTE £X
Other continuous 30th April 2003 30th April 2004 to HK$0.82 500,000 — — 500,000
contract employees —TT=F 29th April 2009 082 T
EEMANRESR MA=+H —TTRFNA=THE
—EFNFNAZ-TAR
30th April 2003 30th April 2005 to HK$0.82 500,000 — - 500,000
—ER=F 29th April 2009 0828 T
MA=+H —ERRFWNA=TEE
—EENFNA-TAR
30th April 2003 30th April 2006 to HK$0.82 500,000 — — 500,000
—2T=F 29th April 2009 082 87T
MA=+H ZETRFENA=THE
“ETAFRA-TAR
2nd May 2003 2nd May 2004 to HK$0.82 2,000,000 — — 2,000,000
—ZL=HF Ist May 2009 082 8T
hA=A —FTRFRA-RE
—RRNERA-R
Ind May 2003 2nd May 2005 to HK$0.82 2,000,000 — — 2,000,000
—EZ2=F Ist May 2009 0828 TT
fAZH “TThERACRE
—BRNERA-R
2nd May 2003 2nd May 2006 to HK$0.82 2,000,000 — — 2,000,000
& St 5 Ist May 2009 082
fiAZH “EEAFHACZHE
“Z2FNFRA-A
25,500,000 — — 25,500,000

No options were granted, exercised or cancelled during the year.
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SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2004 are set out in

note 25 to the accounts.

INTEREST CAPITALISED

No interest has been capitalised by the Group during the year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year were:

Mr HUI Sai Chung (Chairman)
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong (Deputy Chairman and Managing Director)
DrWONG Chi Ying, Anthony
Mr LAI Kam Wah
Mr CHING Yu Lung
Madam LIU Sau Lai
Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul *
Mr FONG Pong Hing *
(appointed on |3th October 2003)
Mr CHAN Dit Lung *
(appointed on 28th September 2004)
Dr LAM Kwok Kin, Joseph *
(resigned on |3th October 2003)

*  Independent Non-executive Directors

Save for the Chairman and the Managing Director; all of the Directors are subject to

retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company's Bye-laws.

Mr LAl Kam Wah, Dr WONG Chi Ying, Anthony and Mr CHAN Dit Lung retire by
rotation in accordance with clauses 86 and 87 of the Company's Bye-laws and, being

eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have been appointed for a term subject

to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

HEAR
BRARARZ EEMMARAR -FENFAA
=+ B ZH BRI M5 -

BEEXZFE
ARERAFRREFEREER

5%
AEREEZESHT

SRt RRE A (£/8)

FERELE (BIFRRESELE)

BETEEL

RBERE

BmELsE

BEEXL

fAREEE*

HRREL
(R=FE=FtA+=REZHN)

BRikBEAL
(R-ZTENEAA=T/\BEZE)

HEREL *
(R=ZZ=F+A+=HEMD)

* BUFNTEF

REFADAZ AR REIFREFLRLE
S AEEHABRESE -

BREARQARZRRMMAIESCRSTIE - BIREL
£ EFTLEIEBRREALESRER
HEBERTREmRET-

BUFBTEEHIREARFRZAAMANESR
£ ERFRBESE -
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries,
which is not determinable by the employer within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business to which the
Company, its holding company or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,

subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 30th June 2004, the interests and short positions of each Director and chief
executive in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance ("SFO")), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company under

Section 352 of the SFO or as notified the Company were as follows:

(i) ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company

CEER RS

ESZBEEY
FEREERRBFASLERECCEEN
EEANF KA TAHBRRTLEE AR
—FRNBAELRE CEERERN) MELZ
REEH

EERNANz RS

ARE - ARRARSAMNE AR LSS ET
VEAEEEBERINAERERB AT
BEREFAESHNAEREARFEFER LM
ERREABRZEBARAN -

EERBETHRAERARAHRLEM
ERZEREAREF ZEERAR

R-ZEEOEFERA=TR  ARRAREE &
BITBRAERF QR HATEAERZEZE (EE
REFRBEEG ((EFRERA])) BRA
ARRHzRERE BN REBE FHRED
FI2FFE AT BRY - MEKRORES
ZEZRXRIT :

(i) ZRAAGREE0.10ETZEER

Number of shares of the Company beneficially held

BEREZEXLARGEE
Personal Corporate Family Other
Name of Directors interests interests interests interests
Esps BARS PR ZEREE Hipls
Mr HUI Sai Chung A% E  Long positions 11,970,000 158,000,000 (a) — —
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong FEXELE  Long positions i [1,716000 154,735,000 (b) s —
Madam LIU Sau Lai EEEZT  Long positions & 1,102,500 — = (©
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES

AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY

ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (Cont'd )

(i) derivative to ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company

Name of Directors

ESRBETHRABREAAAHEEM
B LERARES 2 EERKXR (9)

(i) XAGEREE10BTZEERITE

IE

Unlisted Share Options

(physically settled equity derivatives)

As at 30th June 2004
FETRRE
(REEHZRRTETA)

EEns R-BENEXA=1H
Mr HUI Sai Chung At B Long positions 4& & 3,000,000

Mr HUI Kwok Kwong FEXEE Long positions #E & 3,000,000
DrWONG ChiYing, Anthony ~ EFZE+ Long positions #& &3 3,000,000

Mr LAl Kam Wah RBEXE Long positions 1 %5 3,000,000

Mr CHING Yu Lung =30k S Long positions ## & 3,000,000

Madam LIU Sau Lai EHEBut Long positions 4 3,000,000

Notes: i o -

(@

153,000,000 of these shares are held by Good Benefit Limited (“Good Benefit"), a

company in which Ever Win Limited (“Ever Win") holds a 45.1% interest (note

(c)). In addition, 5,000,000 shares are held by Ever Win directly.

50,000 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Ever Win are held by a

trustee on behalf of a discretionary trust, the discretionary objects of which
include Mr HUI Sai Chung and his family members. Mr HUI Sai Chung and his

spouse further own 30,834 and 5 class A non-convertible redeemable preferred

shares of no par value in Ever Win respectively.

(a)

% % | 17 Z 153,000,0008 J3 B Good
Benefit Limited([Good Benefitl ) #5 % -
Ever Win Limited ([Ever Win]) #% Good
Benefit BA 2 M+ R E— i (M) - 1t
4+ 5,000,0008% B {3 FEver WinE & H5% ©

Ever Win& iR B {E 11170 2 % &% {7 50,0004%
H—EEEARKR-H2HEEHESRE &
EREEREE I Ee ARETERELRAR
BRE  FHEAERERBEARES
Ever Win A% [ {& 7 7] 5 4% A i o] {8 5 %
30,834 0% RR5HR -
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND EERBETHASRALAREAM
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES BELERARES 2 ERRAR (@)
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY

ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (Cont'd)

(b) 153,000,000 of these shares are held by Good Benefit, a company in which (b) ZFR{H+ 153,000,000/ J5 81 Good
Evergrow Company Limited (“Evergrow”) holds a 45.1% interest (note (c)). In Benefit¥f & « Evergrow Company
addition, 1,735,000 shares are held by Evergrow directly. Limited( [ Evergrow] ) # #& Good

Benefit B % 200+ 7 % —# 35 (i ¥
(c)) o it &b + 1,735,0008 A% 13

EvergrowE A -
50,000 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Evergrow are held by a EvergrowB R EE 1M 2 & @R H
trustee on behalf of a discretionary trust, the discretionary objects of which 50,000 —BERXARK—BH2ER
include Mr HUI Kwok Kwong and his family members, Mr HUI Kwok Kwong AEERA  ATEETERZZEA
further owns 30,823 class A non-convertible redeemable preferred shares of no BREFEAEEREREKSR - 5FE L
par value in Evergrow. f it A Evergrow AR BEEE A K
64 7] ik o1 £ 5% R 30,823/

(c) The beneficial interests of the Directors in the share capital of Good Benefit, fc) EZHE#Good Benefit(R—FEME R
which held 153,000,000 shares of the Company as at 30th June 2004, are as A=+ B % %2 7153,000,0000% i
follows: DY RAZESEZOT ¢

Number of Percentage

Name of Directors shares of holding
EBEnA R #E ERES K
Mr HUI Sai Chung Fiaue i 4510 45.1%
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong FEXEE 4510 45.1%
Madam LIU Sau Lai EEBELL 80 0.8%
Others Hith 900 9.0%
10,000 100.0%
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (Cont'd )

At 30th June 2004, the following Directors owned interests in non-voting
deferred shares in Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials Limited, which are subject to
an option granted to Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited to acquire the

said non-voting deferred shares.

ESRBETHRABREAAAHEEM
B LERARES 2 EERKXR (9)

R-ZTMEAA=+H " THEFE
FREZEREARLAERFEEL
R fEm - M&EQALE K T Ngai
Hing (International) Company Limited

TRBELIERFTREERG BB

E o
Number of non-voting
deferred shares held
FERRRRBERMHE
Personal Other
Name of Directors interests interests
EEgSR BARER H ol 2%
Mr HUI Sai Chung R 200,000 50,000 (i)
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong SR EE 200,000 50,000 (ii)
Notes: it aE
(i)  These shares are held by Ever Win. (i) ZEFHRG HEver Wink5 A ©
(i)  These shares are held by Evergrow. (i) ZFW{ BEvergrows A -

Save as disclosed above and other than certain nominee shares in the subsidiaries of
the Company held by certain Directors of the Company in trust for the Group as at
30th June 2004, none of the Directors and chief executives have any beneficial or
non-beneficial interests in the share capital of the Company and associated

corporations required to be disclosed pursuant to the SFO.

BREXFRERARAETESUGRTAR
ZREBEARAETHEAAREARG
S R-ZZBELNFAAZH - FEFRES
TRABRADE RABBAR 2 BRA+ B &5
BEARBEFHREIATRECERAIF
Rt o

200372004 4k
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (Cont'd)

Save as disclosed under the section headed by "Share Options” above,

(a) atno time during the year was the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or chief
executives of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of

shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate; and

(b) none of the Directors, chief executives, their spouses or children under the age
of 18 had been granted any right to subscribe for shares in or debentures of

the Company, or exercised any such right.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 30th June 2004, the register of substantial shareholders maintained under
Section 336 of the SFO shows that the Company had not been notified of any
substantial shareholders' interests and short positions, being 5% or more of the
Company's issued share capital, other than those of the Directors and chief

executives as disclosed above.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during

the year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
The percentages of purchases for the year attributable to the Group's major

suppliers are as follows:

1 9%
52%

The largest supplier

Five largest suppliers combined

The aggregate percentage of sales attributable to the Group's five largest customers
is less than 30% of the Group's total sales for the year ended 30th June 2004 and

therefore no additional disclosure with regard to the major customers is made.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company's share capital) had

an interest in the major suppliers noted above.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF BEST PRACTICE

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules throughout the year ended 30th June 2004 except that the term of
office for the Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the Annual General Meeting in accordance
with the Company's Bye-laws. This does not comply with Paragraph 7 of the Code
of Best Practice which suggests that Independent Non-executive Directors should

be appointed for a specific term.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
The written terms of reference which describe the authority and duties of the Audit
Committee were prepared and adopted with reference to "A Guide for The
Formation of An Audit Committee” published by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

The Audit Committee provides an important link between the Board of Directors
and the Company's auditors in matters coming within the scope of the group audit.
It also reviews the effectiveness of the external audit and of internal controls and
risk evaluation. The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul, Mr FONG Pong Hing and Mr CHAN Dit
Lung. Dr LAM Kwok Kin, Joseph, previously Independent Non-executive Director
and a member of the Audit Committee, resigned on |3th October 2003 and was
replaced by Mr FONG Pong Hing on the same date. Mr CHAN Dit Lung was
appointed on 28th September 2004. Meetings of the Audit Committee will be held
not less than twice a year and the Audit Committee met the Company's auditors in
September 2004 to review the Group's results for the year before it was tabled for

the approval of the Board of Directors.

AUDITORS
The accounts have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being

eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment,

On behalf of the Board

HUI Sai Chung

Chairman

Hong Kong,
|3th October 2004
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REPORT OF THE AUDITORS

A TR

PRICEAVATERHOUSE(QOPERS

5 oK A3 0 A AT

AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the accounts on pages 33 to 77 which have been prepared in

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong,

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of accounts
which give a true and fair view. In preparing accounts which give a true and fair view
it is fundamental that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied

consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit, on those
accounts and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22nd Floor Prince's Building
Central, Hong Kong

Telephone (852) 2289 8888
Facsimile (852) 2810 9888
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REPORT OF THE AUDITORS

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. An audit includes
examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in
the accounts. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and
judgements made by the Directors in the preparation of the accounts, and of
whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the circumstances of the

Company and the Group, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and
explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient
evidence to give reasonable assurance as to whether the accounts are free from
material misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information in the accounts. We believe that our

audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion the accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 30th June 2004 and of the Group's profit and cash
flows for the year then ended and have been properly prepared in accordance with

the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 13th October 2004
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS

ACCOUNT

2004 2003

Note HK$'000 HK$'000

fit 3k FHER FHET

Turnover LER 2 874,976
Cost of sales HEKAK (749,513)
Gross profit EF 125,463

Other revenues H b 2 2 611
Distribution costs 7 AR (27.010)
Administrative expenses ABZH (52,337)
Operating profit mER 46,727
Finance costs MBEER 4 (1,450)
Profit before taxation B %4 B 3 45277
Taxation HiE 5(@) (2,450)
Profit after taxation BrBife A 42,827
Minority interests LR EES (2,365)
Profit attributable to shareholders A% 3R 4 35 F 6& 17 40,462
Dividends g 7 24,000
HK cents

AL

Earnings per share BREF 8 13.49

2003/2004 4k
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

2004
Note HK$'000
Ft 5 FERT
Fixed assets EEEE I
Deferred tax assets REHBEE 19
Current assets REEE
Inventories e 13
Trade receivables EE ) &N 14
Other receivables, H fth UK -
prepayments and deposits RS RkES
Cash and bank balances RERBITHH
Current liabilities nEBE
Trade payables B 5 R 15
Other payables H At FE A 5%
Accruals BIRER
Taxation iE 5(b)
Obligations under finance RmEHEEET
leases - current portion — B SR {n 18
Trust receipts loans - secured EREBEER - FEHF [1(e)
Short-term bank loans - secured EHETER-FER Ll (e)
Net current assets FREEE
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRPAER
Financed by: BEEWR -
Share capital AR 2% 16
Other reserves Hib & 17
Retained earnings RE A 17
Proposed dividends fe=3 85N 17
Shareholders’ funds R g
Minority interests DR RE R
Long-term liabilities RYGHE 18
Deferred tax liabilities EEHREAR 19
On behalf of the Board RRESEE

HUI Sai Chung
Chairman

E

Eace

ANNUAL REPORT 2003/2004

HUI Kwok Kwong

Deputy Chairman and Managing Director
BITRREFLITE

FFEX

2003
HK$'000
TET
135,699

97,423
172,856

12,513
63,995

346,787

62,288
5,985
7,185
3,669

3481
62,886
24,145

169,639

177,148

312,847

30,000
36,724
208,998
15,000

290,722
6,784
14,257
1,084

312,847



BALANCE SHEET

2004 2003
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
fit 3k FHER FHET
Investments in subsidiaries MEBARIRE 12 136,173
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE 19 =
Current assets MBEE
Other receivables H fth FE H K 389
Cash and bank balances ReERB|ITHEH 70
459
Current liabilities mEBE
Other payables AR 452
Net current (liabilities)/assets FnE (BRE) /BE 7
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRDBME 136,180
Financed by: EARR
Share capital g 16 30,000
Other reserves HifEE |7 90,986
Retained earnings R & 17 194
Proposed dividends BERE 17 15,000
Shareholders' funds REE R 136,180
On behalf of the Board RREEE

HUI Sai Chung
Chairman

E

S

HUI Kwok Kwong

Deputy Chairman and Managing Director

BlTEREFCLE
FFEX
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Note
Hf aE
Total equity brought forward EEIEE F
Surplus on revaluation BRENEMELD
of investment properties RER 17
Net gains not recognised ARBEREI &
in the profit and loss account e ¥
Profit for the year A5 g K 17
Dividends B2, 17
Total equity carried forward BREGGE

ANNUAL REPORT 2003/2004

2004
HK$'000
TER

2003
HK$'000
TET

272,960

1,300

1,300
40,462

(24,000)

290,722



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

2004 2003
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
it & FTERT FRT
Operating activities BEER
Net cash (outflow)/inflow RWEEBEAZRSE
from operations (Rd) /EAFE 20(a) 27,625
Interest paid on bank borrowings ENMRITEENS (1,283)
Hong Kong profits tax paid EREEBNEH @17)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from BEXKZEE
operating activities (W) /RARE 25,425
Investing activities REEK
Purchase of fixed assets BEETEE (43,024)
Sale of fixed assets HEBTEE 3,200
Interest received 2HFIE 211
Net cash outflow from investing activities ~ IEEH 2 RE KL FH (39.613)
Net cash outflow before financing REMBERALFE (14,188)
Financing activities mE
New bank loans raised FIERITER 20(b) 16414
Repayment of bank loans EERTER 20(b) =
Increase in trust receipts loans s MR E R 20(b) 41367
Repayment of capital element EEREHE
of finance leases AR 20(b) (965)
Interest element of finance lease payments Bt & M &7 8 210 (167)
Capital contribution by a LERRZEREA
minority shareholder 20(b) —
Dividends paid A1) (24,000)
Dividends paid to minority shareholders EHPEBRRZBRL (952)
Net cash inflow from financing REZRERANFR 31,697
(Decrease)/increase in cash and RERBAEER
cash equivalents Cad) /m 17,509
Cash and cash equivalents brought forward ~ HAIR & RIS EE 46,486
Cash and cash equivalents carried forward ~ RE& R & SHEEH 63,995
Analysis of balances of cash and ReRBEESE
cash equivalents; BB
Cash and bank balances BRERRTEH 63995

2003/2004 4k
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these accounts

are set out below:

(a) Basis of preparation
The accounts have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and comply with accounting
standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"). They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention except that, as disclosed in the accounting policies below,

investment properties are stated at market value.

In the current year, the Group adopted the Statement of Standard
Accounting Practice (“SSAP") No. |2 "Income Taxes” issued by the
HKICPA which is effective for accounting periods commencing on or
after Ist January 2003. The effect of adopting this revised accounting

standard is set out in note |(j) below.

(b)  Consolidation
The consolidated accounts include the accounts of the Company and its

subsidiaries (the “Group") made up to 30th June.

Subsidiaries are those entities in which the Company, directly or
indirectly, controls more than one half of the voting power; has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies; to appoint or
remove the majority of the members of the board of directors, or to cast

majority of votes at the meetings of the board of directors.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated profit and loss account from the effective

date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

All significant intercompany transactions and balances within the Group

are eliminated on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(b)

(c)

Consolidation (Contd)

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary represents the difference
between the proceeds of the sale and the Group’s share of its net assets
together with any unamortised goodwill or capital reserve which was not
previously charged or recognised in the consolidated profit and loss

account.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside shareholders in the

operating results and net assets of subsidiaries.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in subsidiaries are stated
at cost less provision for impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends received and

receivable,

Fixed assets

()  Investment properties
Investment properties are interests in land and buildings in respect
of which construction work and development have been completed
and which are held for their investment potential, any rental income

being negotiated at arm’s length.

Investment properties are valued at intervals of not more than
three years by independent valuers; in each of the intervening years
valuations are undertaken by professionally qualified valuers. The
valuations are on an open market value basis related to individual
properties and separate values are not attributed to land and
buildings. The valuations are incorporated in the annual accounts.
Increases in valuation are credited to the investment properties
revaluation reserve. Decreases in valuation are first set off against
increases on earlier valuations on a portfolio basis and thereafter
are debited to operating profit. Any subsequent increases are

credited to operating profit up to the amount previously debited.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(9

Fixed assets (Contd)

()

(i)

(i)

(v)

Investment properties (Contd)

Upon the disposal of an investment property, the relevant portion
of the revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous valuations
is released from the investment properties revaluation reserve to

the profit and loss account.

Properties under construction

Properties under construction are investments in land (including
land use rights) and buildings on which construction work has not
been completed. These properties are carried at cost which
includes development and construction expenditure incurred and
interest and other direct costs attributable to the development less
any accumulated impairment losses. On completion, the properties
are transferred to other properties at cost less accumulated

impairment losses.

Other properties

Other properties are interests in land (including land use right) and
buildings other than investment properties and properties under
construction and are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. Cost represents the purchase
price of the assets and other costs incurred to bring the asset into

its existing use.

Other fixed assets

Other fixed assets, comprising leasehold improvements, machinery
and equipment, furniture, fixtures and office equipment, motor
vehicles and tools and moulds are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

()

Fixed assets (Contd)

)

(vi)

Depreciation
Investment properties held on leases with unexpired periods of 20
years or less are depreciated over the remaining portion of the

leases.

Leasehold land (including land use right) of other properties is
depreciated over the period of the lease while other fixed assets
are depreciated at rates sufficient to write off their cost less
accumulated impairment losses over their estimated useful lives on

a straight-line basis. The principal annual rates are as follows:

Land 2%
Buildings 2-2.5%
Leasehold improvements 20%
Machinery and equipment 12.5%
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Tools and moulds 20%

Improvements are capitalised and depreciated over their expected

useful lives to the Group.

Impairment and gain or loss on disposal of fixed assets

At each balance sheet date, both internal and external sources of
information are considered to assess whether there is any
indication that assets included in properties under construction,
other properties and other fixed assets are impaired. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
and where relevant, an impairment loss is recognised to reduce the
asset to its recoverable amount. Such impairment losses are

recognised in the profit and loss account.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
(¢c) Fixed assets (Contd)

(Vi)

Impairment and gain or loss on disposal of fixed assets (Cont'd)

The gain or loss on disposal of a fixed asset other than investment
properties and properties under construction is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the

relevant asset, and is recognised in the profit and loss account.

(d) Assets under leases

@)

(i)

Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group all the risks and
rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as finance leases.
Finance leases are capitalised at the inception of the leases at the
lower of the fair value of the leased assets or the present value of
the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is allocated
between the capital and finance charges so as to achieve a constant
rate on the capital balances outstanding. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in long-term
liabilities. The finance charges are charged to the profit and loss

account over the lease periods.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter

of their estimated useful lives or the lease periods.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
assets remain with the leasing company are accounted for as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases net of any
incentives received from the leasing company are charged to the
profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the lease

periods.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(e)

(M

(g)

(h)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair
value of the Group's share of the net assets of the acquired subsidiary at
the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions that occurred prior to

I'st July 2001 was taken directly to reserves.

In accordance with SSAP 30 “Business combinations”, goodwill on
acquisitions occurring on or after Ist July 2001 is included in intangible
assets and is amortised using the straight-line method over its estimated

useful life.

Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of
goodwill, including goodwill previously taken to reserves, is assessed and

written down immediately to its recoverable amount.

Inventories

Inventories comprise trading stocks, raw materials and finished goods and
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost, calculated
on the weighted average basis, comprises materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of all production overhead expenditure. Net
realisable value is determined on the basis of anticipated sales proceeds
less estimated selling expenses and, where appropriate, the cost of

conversion from their existing state to a finished condition.

Accounts receivable
Provision is made against accounts receivable to the extent that they are
considered to be doubtful. Accounts receivable in the balance sheet are

stated net of such provision.

Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash

equivalents comprise cash and bank balances.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(i)

()

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Where the Group expects
a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a

separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is provided in full, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the accounts. Taxation rates
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date are used to

determine deferred taxation.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary

differences can be utilised.

Deferred taxation is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference can be controlled and it is probable that the

temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

In prior year, deferred taxation was accounted for at the current taxation
rate in respect of timing differences between profit as computed for
taxation purposes and profit as stated in the accounts to the extent that
a liability or an asset was expected to be payable or recoverable in the
foreseeable future. The adoption of the revised SSAP |2 represents a
change in accounting policy. However, the adoption has not resulted in
any significant changes to the prior years' net assets and results and

accordingly, no prior year adjustment is required.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

I PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(k)

(1)

(m)

Revenue recognition
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised on the transfer of risks and
rewards of ownership, which generally coincides with the time when the

goods are delivered to customers and title has passed.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the rental

period.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis, taking into
account the principal amounts outstanding and the interest rates

applicable.

Translation of foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities expressed in
foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated at rates of
exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising in

these cases are dealt with in the profit and loss account.

The accounts of subsidiaries expressed in foreign currencies are
translated under the net investment method. Exchange differences arising

are dealt with as a movement in reserves.

Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability
for annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up

to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not

recognised until the time of leave.

1 IRETEBR @

(k)

(1)

(m)

WABE
HERAREREZRRRERE
BRARAARNETRERMS
EBRE)BARK

HeMADRESENEEHAA
B o

MBWADERRLHIEE - A
HAFERLBANREAR -

IERE
PONERAMZR S - BERHE
AZERFE - REBEAMSNEE
TREBEERAMAREERL
EXfE dhELEZELRES
APABER

HEARZINEREHRFREE
8- ELZERBFERR
BEHAR -

EE#EF

i) EEERZFEHY
BEFRIBENERERES
BHER - AREAHERER
HEBCRH®ZRBMELZ
FRzEABELER -

ERZABRERNERS
EZEEEAKRRABL
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
(m) Employee benefits (Contd)

(n)

(0)

(i) Pension obligations
The Group makes contributions to the mandatory provident fund
scheme (the "MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong, the assets of which are
generally held in separate trustee-administered fund. The pension
plan is generally funded by payments from employees and by the

Group.

The Group's contributions to the MPF Scheme are expensed as

incurred.

(i) Equity compensation benefits
Share options are granted to Directors and employees of the
Group. No compensation cost is recognised on the date of the
grant of the options.When the options are exercised, the proceeds
received net of any transaction costs are credited to share capital

(nominal value) and share premium.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the construction of an
asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for

its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the profit and loss account in

the year in which they are incurred.

Segment reporting

In accordance with the Group's internal financial reporting the Group has
determined that geographical segments be presented as the primary
reporting format. Business segments are not presented as the secondary
reporting format because over 90% of the Group's turnover and
operating profit were contributed by manufacturing and trading of plastic

products.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

| PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) 1 FEEHBE®
(o)  Segment reporting (Contd) (o) BEHEE(H)
In respect of geographical segment reporting, turnover are based on the BFRBESBRE  EXEHRE
operating locations of group companies. SEARMEMERNE
Unallocated costs represent corporate expenses. Segment assets consist APERFEEHEBLERZ - 5
primarily of investment properties, properties under development, fixed DEETZRRERENE  2ES
assets, inventories, receivables and operating cash. Segment liabilities hE BETEE 78 BEHA
comprise operating liabilities and exclude items such as taxation and k€8s »HAFEELESR
deferred taxation. Capital expenditure comprises additions to fixed & mMABRENNHEREERR
assets. WA -ATMHAXEBAEER
ENEA -
2 REVENUES AND TURNOVER 2 BHEREXE
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal ARAZTEERARERR EXE
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 25 to the accounts. MBAR 2T EXZRKAFHNERER N
Revenues recognised during the year are as follows: 25 FRBAZWSWMT :
Group
£
2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTART FTET
Turnover CE %
Sale of goods, net of returns and discounts HEEm (MERRERITM) 874,976
Other revenues H Y 5%
Rental income He WA 400
Interest income S U A 211
6l1
Total revenues g 875,587

2003/2004 ‘et | 47




NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTIS
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2 REVENUES AND TURNOVER (Cont'd) 2 WKEREXE @
An analysis of the Group's segment information by geographical segment is as AEBERIZHRES 2 HER S
follows: mE
2004
The People’s
Republic
of China
excluding
Hong Kong
(the “PRC™)
FEAR
HAE
Hong Kong (FB#E&®E)  Elimination Group
5B (T El) i %M
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FERT FERT FERT
Turnover ExE
Other revenues H fh o g5
Total revenues @i
Segment results GRIES
Unallocated costs ADEA
Profit before taxation B Bt Al 7
Taxation BiE
Profit after taxation BRBEER
Minority interests LB RER
Profit attributable to
shareholders R R B 48 i
Segment assets NHEE
Unallocated assets ANEBE
Total assets BEE
Segment liabilities NHBE
Unallocated liabilities AAERME
Total liabilities BafE
Capital expenditure BAX
Depreciation wE

ANNUAL REPORT 2003/2004




NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

2 REVENUES AND TURNOVER (Cont'd) 2 WRREEH#®)
2003

Hong Kong The PRC Elimination Group

Bk B B £H

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET FHET FHET

Turnover 2E® 825981 233977 874976
Other revenues Hit e zs 468 143 611
Total revenues A 826,449 234,120 875,587
Segment results AEEEA 18,310 28,501 46,811
Unallocated costs R 5B A (1,534)
Profit before taxation B BT R R 45277
Taxation | (2,450)
Profit after taxation FRBERERN 42,827
Minority interests LY REER (2.365)

Profit attributable to

shareholders A SR B 1 i 40,462
Segment assets DHEE 298,856 183,167 482,023
Unallocated assets ROBEE 463
Total assets EEE 482,486
Segment liabilities SEE & 137,870 44,208 182,078
Unallocated liabilities APEBRE 2,902
Total liabilities BaE 184,980
Capital expenditure BAX M 28,757 32,883 61,640
Depreciation HE 4021 4376 8,397

Over 90% of the Group's turnover, operating profit and assets are attributable

to the manufacturing and trading of plastic products and accordingly no

analysis of the Group's turnover, contribution to operating profit and assets by

business segment is provided.

ASEBBENINTZERE  £%
HAIREEERREMER I EENE
% AUYRERABRIBZXZHESE
B BERNREEZNN-
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

3 OPERATING PROFIT

Operating profit is stated after crediting and charging the following:

3 KgEA

BERNDNEHARNGK T EEES
BE .

Group
=
2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FTEL
Crediting atA
Gross rental income from investment properties & & ¥ E B WA 400
Less: Qutgoings R (36)
Net rental income from investment properties REMERERNEE 364
Gain on disposal of fixed assets HEBRTEEZ W 501
Charging kR
Auditors’ remuneration BB E 830
Depreciation: E:
Owned fixed assets BEEERE 7,705
Leased fixed assets HEETEE 692
Operating lease rentals in respect THRIBFZEE
of land and buildings HEHS 5,534
Staff costs, including directors' BIXE (BREEEMNE)
emoluments (note 9) (M 9) 50,816
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FINANCE COSTS

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

4 BMHEA

Interest on bank borrowings wholly
repayable within five years

Interest element of finance leases

RRAFAZBERZRT
BEZHME
REHEN S HM

Less: borrowing costs capitalised

in properties under development

B EERERERER
RETUEZAA

Group

£
2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FHEIT

1,783
167

1,950

(500)

1,450

2003/2004 4k
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

5 TAXATION 5 HiA
(a) Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 17.5% (2003: (@) BFENGHDERASEREAFRZ
17.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation on R ERRBENEREES 2T
overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable profit HR(ZEF=F:-aa2+tt%
for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which H)EtE - BB ZHR - BliRR
the Group operates. The Group's subsidiaries operating in the PRC are AFEEHAERBBIEEEEE
fully exempted from PRC income tax for two years starting from their EBHEZRINENE - 2&E
first profit-making years and are entitled to a 50% income tax reduction EFEEE s MEARMRE @R
for a further three years. MEERAMFAEZERE AN
FEMEE  MREER=ZF - BlF
BERGAZATZFHEH -
The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated profit and loss GEBERR/IBEILA:

account represents:

Group
3]
2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Current taxation: AEFHRE
Hong Kong profits tax EAENG 1,672
PRC income tax B P15 X —
Under/(over) provision in NEEERBRR/
previous years (EBRERHE) (20)
1,652
Deferred taxation (note |9) EEHE (HEE19) 798
2,450
(b) Taxation in the balance sheet represents the amount of Hong Kong b) BEEBERAZHEDNELREER
profits tax and PRC income tax provided for the current and previous FERNGFEEBNEHERR
years less the amounts of provisional profits tax paid. EZEHMEAB R EE -
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

W F B

5 TAXATION (Contd) 5 B\

(c) The taxation on the Group's profit before taxation differs from the 0 FAEEFMBRBARTNZHERR
theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of the home ERRARARALER 2 HEMmat
country of the Company as follows: EZEmHBELERNT

2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Profit before taxation B AT E R 45,277
Calculated at a taxation rate BHE175% (ZTF=F :175%)
of 17.5% (2003: 17.5%) FEZHRE 7923
Effect of different taxation rates in PRC ~ FRETRAHRE 2 £ (4.582)
Income not subject to taxation BRRBZBRA (756)
Expenses not deductible FRMIHZ X H
for taxation purposes 573
Under/(over) provision NGEERETR/
in previous years (HBEEE) (20)
Utilisation of previously M BELRERZ
unrecognised tax losses HIERE (594)
Others Hit (94)
Taxation charge REXH 2450
6  PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS 6 BREERT
Included in the profit attributable to shareholders is profit of HK$10,137,000 FARRAIREZRREGRNA
(2003: HK$23,476,000) which is dealt with in the Company's own accounts. 10,137,000 T (= T = F

23,476,000 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

DIVIDENDS B2
2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FTHT
Interim, paid, of HK 1.0 cent 2P HR S8R 1.0 B
(2003: HK 3.0 cents) per ordinary share (ZZZT=%F : 3.0%) 9,000
Final, proposed, of HK 2.0 cents Bk K HR S 88 20 EWL
(2003: HK 5.0 cents) per ordinary (ZZZT=%F : 50%{0)
share (note) (P aE) 15,000
24,000
Note: B &t

At a meeting held on |3th October 2004, the Directors proposed a final dividend of
HK2.0 cents per ordinary share. This proposed dividend is not reflected as a dividend
payable in these accounts, but will be reflected as an appropriation of retained earnings
for the year ending 30th June 2005.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based on the Group's
profit attributable to the shareholders of HK$13,279,000 (2003:
HK$40,462,000).

The basic earnings per share is calculated based on 300,000,000 (2003:
300,000,000) ordinary shares in issue during the year. For the year ended 30th
June 2004, no diluted earnings per share is presented as there is no dilutive

potential ordinary share during the year.
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STAFF COSTS (INCLUDING DIRECTORS” EMOLUMENTS)

9 BIRKX(BRESHR)

2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAET

B TERAMRR

Salaries, wages and other allowances

Pension costs - defined contribution BAEKA-AE
plans (note) fREtE ()
Termination benefits MiEHE

47,067

22227
1,527

50816

Note:

Prior to |st December 2000, the Group contributed to a defined contribution
retirement benefit scheme (the “Scheme™) which was available to all qualifying
employees. The assets of the Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. Contributions to the Scheme by the Group are
calculated as a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries. No contribution has been
made by the Group to the Scheme since |st December 2000 as the Group elected to
contribute to the MPF Scheme as detailed below.

With effect from |st December 2000, the MPF Scheme was made compulsory as
enforced by the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority of Hong Kong. The MPF
Scheme is a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme administered by
independent trustees. Each of the employer and the employee has to contribute an
amount equal to 5% of the relevant income (plus cashable allowances) of the employee
to the MPF Scheme. Contributions from the employer are 100% vested in the
employees as soon as they are paid to the relevant MPF Scheme but all benefits derived
from the mandatory contribution must be preserved until the employee reaches the

retirement age 65 subject to a few exception.

There were no forfeited contributions (2003: Nil) under the Scheme during the year.
The aggregate employer's contributions net of the forfeited contributions amount to
approximately HK$2,098,000 (2003: HK$2,222,000) have been dealt with in the

consolidated profit and loss account of the Group during the year.

GER

R-FRFTFT_A—AA - AEERHEE
ERERT2RZ REHRFRKENTE
(TR E)) STRHHR - RIEBI < BE S
—BUYREEERE  BEGEzEENH -
AR BB RET RIFL 2 SR IR R B EAH
S EEBALEHE - ARAREERARE
SEHBMR - AUARELRER-_TRESF
+ZA—BRERKFEHR -

E-ZRTF+_A—BHE  FERHED
EEHERRERAESHE - BHESHE
R REHATERAESHBRMBIEREAE
B BIGEEHEAREREHUEA (BERE
RE)MBESZIAAMSHEHR - B2
HREABRAREE%  D2BRERFS
B RETHERI  BHEHKSRZFER
REBZEEFEOOHMBRETA TEHE -

EERVERBHRAETHRKZER (=T
= 8) xEBERFEGLBERE
BR 2 3 4752,008,0008 T (ZRE=4F :
2,222,000 7T) ©
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
F I Fif

10 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS 10 EEREBEBAEZME

56

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EBME
The aggregate amounts of the emoluments payable to Directors of the REFERNALFAZESMEE
Company during the year are as follows: BT :
Group Company
%E AT
2004 2003 2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERx FHET FTERx FET
Executive Directors HITEE
Fees we —
Basic salaries, allowances and BERHH - 2UR
other benefits in kinds HtnEYH = -
Discretionary bonuses BITREMIEL -
Pensions BKe —
Ex-gratia payments as BEHE
compensation for loss of office
- as director —ERES —
- in connection with —EAXEEZ
management of the Group BEE —
Independent Non-executive BT
Directors EF
Fees ik 232
Basic salaries, allowances and BEAFM - 2HR
other benefits in kind A EMH = —
232

ANNUAL REPORT 2003/2004




NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

10 DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S EMOLUMENTS (Contd) 10 BEZEREBEBASZME (&)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Cont'd) (a) EEME(H)
The number of Directors of the Company whose emoluments fell within NFTHEMERANZARFES
the following bands are set out as below: ABEIMT :

Number of directors

Emoluments band EBEAH

MEg B 2004 2003
Nil - HK$1,000,000 & — 1,000,000 T 5
HK$ 1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 77T — 1,500,000 /& T |
HK$ 1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 % 7T — 2,000,000 /& T —
HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7 7T — 2,500,000 # 7T —
HK$2,500,001 - HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7 7T — 3,000,000 # 7T 2
HK$3,000,001 - HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 77T — 3,500,000 # T |
*  Include emoluments of Independent Non-executive Directors *  ARBUFHTEEZME

No Directors waived emoluments in respect of the years ended 30th BEEEREUDBEZE-_Z2NE
June 2004 and 2003. EZZZ2=F A=+HLEFEZ

M o
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

[0 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S EMOLUMENTS (Contd)
(b)  Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were highest in the Group for
the year include four (2003: three) Directors whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments payable to the

remaining one (2003: two) individual during the year are as follows:

10 EEREEEEASZHME (@)
(b) BERBHMAL

ARBFAFEIRRRHFMALS
ME (ZBB=F : ZR)RARAL
EF EMEER AN AR -
FRNFHHB—R(CRTZF M

EXRFH 2R

Basic salaries, allowances and

other benefits in kinds HiBWHI&
Discretionary bonuses BITEEMEL
Pensions ‘KE

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

Emoluments band

&R 5

R)BERFMALZBMEMT
Group
55
2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FET
2,548
127
2,675
MERBIMT -
Number of individuals
AB
2004 2003

HK$1,000,001 - HK$ 1,500,000
HK$ 1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000

1,000,001 7 7T — 1,500,000 7 7T
1,500,001 # 7T — 2,000,000 7 7T

2
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS.
Hie [ Ph ik

I FIXED ASSETS - GROUP 11 BEEE- K@
Furniture,
fixtures
Properties Machinery ~ and office
Investment Other under  Leasehold and  equipment Motor  Tools and
properties  properties  development improvements  equipment Hf BER vehicles moulds Total

RE#Z  RENZ  REEX ERNRES ABEREE BOZRE RE IARBA 28
HKSO00  HKSO0D  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO000  HK$000  HKSO00  HKSM00
T8n  fEAR  FER 0 R fER 2 TER 0 TER 0 TER TR

Cost or valuation e

At Ist July 2003 R-BE-4tA-H 7845 72755 16,868 7569 131,104 20815 8296 3698 268950
Additions #m - 7 1999 3244 11,131 1338 131 i 19428
Revaluation & 893 — — = = — — — 893
Reclassifcation AR 2007 14959 (18763) = 1701 9% — = =
Disposals k3 — (104) — @) (19 (1415 (183) B4 (%5
At 30th June 2004 R-SZMERA=1H 10745 47881 104 10588 141945 20834 9485 T 85309

Accumulated depreciation 237

At lst July 2003 R-FZ=£+f-H ~ 13499 — 2799 92553 15733 5916 50 133!
Charge fortheyear ~ AERHTE - 1,785 - 1,59% 6,800 1,625 8] W 12984
Revaluation & (538) - - - - - - - (538)
Redlassfication & E 538 (538) - - - - - - —
Disposals i - (14) = 03)  (1753)  (1.93) (183) By @S
At 30th June 2004 R-ZZME, A=A = 14732 - 419 97,600 15965 6624 3000 142120
Net book value EEEFE

At 30th June 2004 R-2ZMENA=1R 10,745 73149 104 6,3% 44345 4869 2861 730 14319
At 30th June 2003 AZ2E-ERA=TA 7845 59,256 16,368 4770 38,551 5082 2380 947 135699
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Il FIXED ASSETS - GROUP (Contd)

The analysis of the cost or valuation at 30th June 2004 of the above assets is

11 BEEEE- &8 (&)
FEERN-—SENFEAA=1TH2ZE

as follows: AHEESTWMT -
Furniture,
fixtures
Properties Machinery ~ and office
Investment Other under  Leasehold and  equipment Motor  Tools and
properties  properties development improvements  equipment Hi  EER vehicles moulds Total
REHE  RfthR RREMNR ERNREE RERRE BLAZRE /g IARHA 28
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TER TER TR TERL TERL TER TER
At cost BRE - 87,881 104 10,588 141,945 20834 9.485 7 174574
At 2004 professional —EEMF
valuation gxhE 10745 = - - - = - - 10
10,745 87,881 104 10,588 141,945 20834 9.485 3737 285,319
The analysis of the cost or valuation at 30th June 2003 of the above assets is FREER _B2=FA=+HZHK
as follows: Ay fHELFOT :
Furniture,
fodures
Properties Machinery ~ and office
Inwestment Other under  Leasehold and  equipment Motor Tools and
properties  properties  development improvements  equipment Ffi - XER vehicles moulds Total
RENE  Atthz EEPHE BENREE RSERAE  BOERE fE IARER ot
HKF000 HE$000 HE$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKF000 HEF000 HK$000 HKS000
TEL TEn Téx THRL TERL T T Thx TERL
At cost B - TS5 16868 1569 1Bl 20815 8296 3698 261,105
At 2003 professional S 2
valuation gXiE 7845 - - - - - - - 7845
7845 TA755 16,868 7569 131,104 20815 8,296 3698 268950
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

FIXED ASSETS - GROUP (Contd)

(2)

The Group's interests in investment properties and other properties at

their net book values are analysed as follows:

1"

BEEE- &8

(a)

ARERBRENEREMME 2 HE

Held on leases of between REENFHEFERTEFZ
10 to 50 years: BHOEE
- in Hong Kong —-&B
- outside Hong Kong —BAUIMNDE

w2 REFEANAT
2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET
26,449
40,652
67,101

Certain other properties of the Group were reclassified as investment

properties on 30th June 2004.

All investment properties of the Group were revalued as at 30th June
2004 on the basis of their open market values by Chung, Chan &
Associates, an independent firm of professional valuers. The surplus
arising on revaluation of HK$1,431,000 (2003: HK$1,300,000) was taken

directly to the investment properties revaluation reserve (note 7).

As at 30th June 2004, the cost and accumulated depreciation of fixed
assets held by the Group under finance leases amounted to
approximately HK$24,671,000 (2003: HK$14,881,000) and HK$2,886,000
(2003: HK$971,000) respectively.

As at 30th June 2004, certain investment and other properties of the
Group with an aggregate net book value of approximately
HK$ 18,875,000 (2003: HK$47,894,000) have been pledged to banks to

secure for banking facilities granted to the Group.

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

FEEXEHEMANER _TEN
FAAZTHEHSERRED
#,

AEBERRREVER_TTNF
ANACTEmBUSEAEMTE
EARARDERERER - REY
¥EHEH1431,0008T (2T
=4 :1,300,000# ) EEEEA
BREDEERFEEAN (RAMF
17) o

RZZEMEARA=1H ' F5&@
REREHERAZEATEE LXK
AR 27 E 5 514 524,671,000
BT (ZET=F : 14,881,000
) k28860008 T (B8 =
1 971,000 7T) °

R-ZZMEXA=+H  ££H
iR @ F 16 48 58 418,875,000/ 7T
(ZFZT=F : 47,894,000 7T) 2
ETREVEREMHECERT
17 BARERFRTEE -
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12 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

R

12 WEATRKRE

Company
N
2004
HK$'000

2003
HK$'000
FTET

Unlisted shares, at cost
Amounts due from subsidiaries

Amount due to a subsidiary

LML - B
e W P 6 8 B 3008
FEA PR B2 R 5UR

62,711
74,665
(1,203)

136,173

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 30th June 2004

are set out in note 25 to the accounts.

The amounts due from and due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and

have no fixed terms of repayment.

ARAR_FFEFEAA=Z1THBEE
B 2 B) 2 RIS BB AR B B EE25 o

BRRENHEARRRLEER £
B BEBEEZERUR -

13 INVENTORIES 13 F&
Group
£H

2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trading stocks BHEBER 48,255
Raw materials R# 32,108
Finished goods A & 17,060
97,423

At 30th June 2004, the carrying amount of inventories that are carried at net
realisable value amounted to HK$4,425,000 (2003: HK$|,407,000).
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

|4 TRADE RECEIVABLES 14 BHEEX
The aging analysis of trade receivables is as follows: BHRURNERRIMMT
Group
£
2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
Below 90 days 0—90H 152,047
91 - 180 days 91— 180 H 15,325
Over 180 days #8180 H 5,484
172,856
The majority of the Group's sales are with credit terms of 30 to 90 days. The AEEAFOHENEERRA=TEN
remaining amounts are on letter of credit or documents against payment. TH EBUERARIARREFXE
ﬁ o
IS TRADE PAYABLES 15 BEEMXK
The aging analysis in trade payables is as follows: BORNRNERATNOT
Group
£8

2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FET
Below 90 days 0—90A 61,263
91 - 180 days 91— 180H 156
Over 180 days #8180 H 869
62,288
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

16 SHARE CAPITAL 16 BA
Company
NG
2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FTERT
Authorised: EERA
800,000,000 (2003: 800,000,000) 800,000,000 (=ZZ =4 : 800,000,000)
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each SREEI0ETZ ERAR 80,000
Issued and fully paid: EETREBERA
300,000,000 (2003: 300,000,000) 300,000,000 (=ZZF =% : 300,000,000)
ordinary shares of HK30.10 each SREEI0E T EBR 30,000

Note:

Pursuant to the share option scheme approved and adopted on 5th December 2002,
the Board of Directors of the Company may offer eligible employees (including
Executive Directors) rights to subscribe for shares of the Company (the “Share

Option"). Movements in the number of Share Options outstanding during the year are

GEE

BE-ZFFE-_F+-AABEETREMZBR
g AATZESENRAERES (B
BRTES) REREAL ARG 2 EF (5
BRiED - REFEMATEZEBEZ SN

as follows: T :
Number of Share Options
BREHE

2004 2003
At the beginning of the year F4 —
Granted on 30th April 2003 (Note (i) REZZZ-FMNA=Z+HEL (M) 1,500,000
Granted on 2nd May 2003 (Note (ii)) RZZE-FRA-AEH (FaEG) 24,000,000
At the end of the year FR 25,500,000

(i)  On 30th April 2003, the Company granted [,500,000 Share Options to certain
employees. The Share Options are exercisable at HK$0.82 per share.

(i)  On 2nd May 2003, the Company granted 24,000,000 Share Options to certain
directors and employees. The Share Options are exercisable at HK$0.82 per

share.
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16 SHARE CAPITAL (Cont'd)

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

16 KA (&)

(i)  Share Options outstanding at the end of the year have the following terms:

(i) RERERTEZEREERDOT :

Number of Share Options

Expiry Date Exercise price BRERE

ZiH A fTEEE 2004 2003

Directors )

— Ist May 2009 —Z—ZZNERR—H HK$0.82 0827 18,000,000

Employees E8

— 29th April 2009 — ZZ2TAFMAZTAE  HK$082 082ET 1,500,000

— Ist May 2009 — 2L NAFRA—H HK$0.82 082ETT 6,000,000
25,500,000

2003/2004 4k
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
& H
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|7 RESERVES 17 R
Group Company
£8 A7
2004 2003 2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TER TET
Share premium RiHEE
Brought forward and carried forward RAIRGE 28475
Capital reserve EXGE
Brought forward and carried forward A RES
(note 17(a)) (B 17(a)) -
Contributed surplus BEaEH
Brought forward and carried forward R RES
(note 17(b) GENL)) 62511
Exchange fluctuation reserve EXRDER
Brought forward and carried forward ESIN L -
Investment properties revaluation reserve RENKERER
Brought forward Al =
Surplus on revaluation EffRH
- gross (note |1) -8 (M3E11) =
- taxation (note 19) - BB (W3 19) —
Carried forward &8 =
Other reserves Efufaf 90,986
Retained earnings RERH
Brought forward AT 207536 15718
Profit for the year REEF| 40462 3476
20022003 (2003: 2001/2002) “E3-/-F%-%E
final dividends paid (Z22=F: 2%/
“ETCFRE)
BRRERS (15,000)
2003/2004 (2003: 2002/2003) —22=/_SENEE
interim dividends paid (Z22=F: %%/
—2F-FE)
Bt HRS (9,000)
Carried forward &4 223998 15,194
Representing: BRIT -
Retained earnings REEH 194
Proposed final dividends BERBRE 15,000
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

|7 RESERVES (Cont'd) 17 @& &)

(a) The capital reserve of the Group represents the aggregate amount of the @) AEBZEARENERBEZBR
non-voting deferred shares of Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials Limited BERQRvEREEELTRGE
and the difference between the nominal amount of the share capital BERR-NDNOFARAREER
issued by the Company in exchange for the aggregate nominal amount of EA(E4A)) BT ZRFTEEMN
the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group REFEBERB AT CRAEESE
reorganisation in 1994 (the “Reorganisation”). EMEZER

(b) The contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference b) ARFZEHABETIENga Hing
between the consolidated shareholders' funds of Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited#
(International) Company Limited at the date on which the Reorganisation EHAMBHZEERRESEHAR
became effective and the nominal amount of the Company's shares ARBEAMBITZREEREZ
issued under the Reorganisation. At group level the contributed surplus is EH - FEEZRUBRDEHBA
reclassified into its components of reserves of the underlying subsidiaries. BHMEATZEEEER -

I8 LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 18 REERE
Group
£
2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
Obligations under finance leases (note) BREBERFE (M) 17,738
Current portion of long-term liabilities RUREZAHAS (3.481)
14257
Note: B &
At 30th June 2004, the Group's finance lease liabilities were repayable as follows: R-ZZEMEAA=+TH - FEENRERE
BEMT :
2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000
TAER FTHET

Within one year —FR 3,956

In the second year FF 4,032

In the third to fifth year F=FEFERF 11,060

19,048

Future finance charges on finance leases REBEZ ARUBER (1,310)

Present value of obligations

under finance leases MEREETHE 17,738
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

I8 LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Cont'd) 18 REAE @)

The present value of obligations under finance leases is as follows: MEEEEMEZBENT
2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FTREL
Within one year —£R 3481
In the second year FF 3,654
In the third to fifth year F=FEFHHF 10,603
17,738

19 EEHE
BEHERAARAREENERTE
HEFHZ TSR (CEE=5F:ES
2HHEE) 2 HEE -

|9 DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences under the

liability method using a principal taxation rate of 17.5% (2003: 17.5%).

The movement on the deferred tax liabilities/(assets) account is as follows: EEREGE/(BE)RBEZ2Z28M
T
Group Company
8 A7
2004 2003 2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TERT TET TERT TET

At Ist July RtA—8 —
Deferred taxation (credited)/charged (3t A) /#1832

to profit and loss account B2 EIEHIE

(note 5) (B3 5) —
Deferred taxation charged to EREVEEHER

investment properties revaluation MR 2 BT IE

reserve (notel7) (BHEE17) -
At 30th June WiA=+H =

ETHREREEDRBBRHRBEHN G
PRRARERBaNRAMMAEE L
RIBRRIERER

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry forward to the
extent that realisation of the related tax benefit through the future taxable

profits is probable.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

19 DEFERRED TAXATION (Cont'd)

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities (prior to offsetting of

19 EEBE (%)
ENELEHAEERAHEZ2H (BE—

balances within the same taxation jurisdiction) during the year is as follows: HBE 2 SREHE) T
Deferred tax liabilities - Group EEHEEE-RE

Accelerated taxation

depreciation

IR B R 47
2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TET
At Ist July ®tA—H 286
Charged to profit and loss account EEGHRENR 798
Charged to investment properties ERAMESHE
revaluation reserve FEEM —
At 30th June WAXA=+AH 1,084
Deferred tax assets - Group BEHERE-%£E
Provision Tax losses Total
i BHEEE a8
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FTET FERT TER THER TET
At |st July RtA—H —
Credited to profit and BatA
loss account Bak —
At 30th June WARAR=+H —
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|9 DEFERRED TAXATION (Cont'd)

Deferred tax assets - Company

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

19 BEHRE @)
BEHRBREE-AF

Tax losses
BEBR
2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FET
At Ist July ®tA—8 —
Credited to profit and loss account Bt AB#=E —
At 30th June ®iA=+A —
Deferred tax assets and liabilities - after offsetting of balances within the BEREEERAG-RE-HANLE
same jurisdiction ZEBEER
Group Company
4. AT
2004 2003 2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TERx THET TERx FTHEL
Deferred tax assets BIERBEE —
Deferred tax liabilities EXRBEAE -
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NOTES TO. THE ACCOUNIS.
W F B

20 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 20 GEREREBRNE
(a)  Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net cash (outflow)/inflow from (a) BEBFRSEELEZRE (HH)
operations S RABERE
Group
=
2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAERT FET
Operating profit BEEF 46,727
Depreciation of fixed assets BEEENE 8,397
Gain on disposal of fixed assets HEBTEEE W (501)
Interest income F A e1h))
Operating profit before working HEESNEA
capital changes 2R 54412
Increase in inventories FEZEM (27,178)
Increase in trade receivables, B 5 RN - HibhEUHR -
other receivables, BRRRESZEM
prepayments and deposits (5,425)
Increase in trade payables, BHRMNT  HEARR
other payables and accruals BREAZEM 5816
Net cash (outflow)/inflow BEETZHRE
from operations (Rl /RAFE 27,625
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS.
HE H Fff 2k

20 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (Contd) 20 SABRERBEM T (@

(b)  Analysis of changes in financing during the year (b) FABEZHSH
Short-term Minority Obligations under Trust
bank loans interests finance leases receipts loans
ERETER SBREES MEHEEE ERRBER

2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKF000 HK$000 HK$000
T@x TEz TEx TEAxL FEx TExL TEZ TER

Brought forward A 7731
New bank loans raised MERTER 16414
Repayment during the year FEEER —
Increase in trust #hnfEst

receipts loans KEER —
Capital contribution by a PUREZ

minority shareholder BARA —
Dividend paid to minority TRLERR

shareholders ZRE —
Inception of finance leases HERERS —
Capital element of finance BERETH

lease payments HERHA -
Share of profit by minority PHRE

shareholders et R =
Carried forward &8 24,145

72 | ANNUAL REPORT 2003/2004




NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

2] COMMITMENTS 21 AEiE
(a) Capital commitments for property, plant and equipment @) BAEME - BRRI[E2ERFRE
2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAERT FET
Contracted but not provided for BENHEREE 148
Authorised but not contracted for EREEREL —
[,148
(b) Commitment under operating leases b) EEHEHARE
As at 30th June 2004, the Group had future aggregate minimum lease RZEEMNEANA=1H ' F5&@
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of land and BRTHEER Rz ML K2
buildings as follows: FZIAAREREREZRRRD
HEMR :
2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET
Not later than one year —ER 5,580
Later than one year and
not later than five years —FRENERDF 10,635
Later than five years FHFHE 1,477
17,692
(c) At 30th June 2004, the Group had maximum outstanding commitments c) RARKEEEHZIERRE &%
in respect of forward contracts in order to hedge the Group's exposure BATIVERBEH - R-FTH
in foreign currencies from its operations as follows: FRAZTH REHEZEHEH
ZEREAENT :
2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER THET
Sell HK dollars for US dollars EETTUBAXRT —
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22

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 30th June 2004, the Company and the Group had the following

contingent liabilities:

(a)

Guarantee in respect of the due performance of a subsidiary under a
contract manufacturing agreement to the extent of HK$20,000,000
(2003: HK$20,000,000);

Guarantees given to banks for banking facilities granted to its subsidiaries to
the extent of approximately HK$255,569,000 (2003: HK$205,360,000); and

In April 2003, a customer (the “Customer”) issued a Writ of Summons in
the High Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region against a
subsidiary of the Company (the "Subsidiary”) and filed a Statement of
Claim in June 2003 claiming against the Subsidiary of US$589,590.53 (the
“Claim") for losses and damages alleged to have been suffered by the
Customer as a result of alleged breach of contract entered into between
the Customer and the Subsidiary for goods sold by the Subsidiary to the
Customer (the "Goods”). On basis of Independent legal advice, the
Subsidiary has (i) filed a defence and counterclaim to the Claim and (ii)
taken out Third Party Proceedings against the company, which supplied
Goods to the Subsidiary for resale to the Customer (the “Third Party™).
The Third Party has also taken out the Fourth Party Proceedings against
the company, which supplied the Goods to the Third Party for resale to
the Subsidiary. In opinion of the Directors, the Subsidiary is unlikely to
suffer any loss for the Claim, therefore, no provision is considered

necessary.

23 ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The Directors regard Good Benefit Limited, a company incorporated in the

British Virgin Islands, as being the ultimate holding company.
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22 HEEE

R-ZETNEA=+AH  KRFARK

EEZEBREENT :

a) ZARATRE—EARBRERER—
MBARZBERORERESS
20,000,000 T (ZEE = F :
20,000,000 7T) 7 &% :

(b) ERATREMBARZRITEE -
] $R 17 £2 ft & = 4 255,569,000/
T (ZZEF =4 : 205,360,000/
TZER R

©) R-FET=FWNA —F2FF([Z

EF) mAAe]—KMEAR ([&
HBAR)REEEITRERS
ERBHERSHK AR =_TF=
FRARHBREME - B5HEM
BLAREREZEFRIIZENME
EeR(IZED]) mMe g
589,690.53% T ([ZHRE]) 2%
REE - REBLEEER - &M
BRABRZBEFHIARR
RRERAEEZEDTZHE
AAAHEETZEF 2 RRI([E
SHNETEZANERERF-F
ZHANERHREZENTE=FIA
HEBEFZHBARZARETE
WARERERF - ARTEEAZAR
ZHBARTAREEAZREN
BBEMBL - Mt EFELE
& o
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

24 APPROVAL OF ACCOUNTS

25

The accounts were approved by the board of directors on |13th October

2004.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2004:

Place of

incorporation or

establishment/operation

“kind of legal entity

Issued and
fully paid

up share capital/

e H ik

24 #ERRE

BREECR_TTEMFTATZREES

-

25 TEMBAHE

R-ZZEWNFRA=ZTH  FRAZE

EMBRARMT :

Effective percentage
of equity
held indirectly

HMEL registered capital by the Company

Name BT T 45 i B BERTR Principal activities EARBESES

8 EAER BRBRE EMEX IREB ZEBRBRXESH

Dongguan Ngai Hing The PRC HK$90,000,000 Manufacture and 100
Plastic Materials Ltd. * wholly foreign- 90,000,000 E T sale of colorants
REREEBRE owned enterprise and compounded
BRAA] H plastic resins
MEEERE RERHERRER
sEaKEE

Hong Kong Colour Hong Kong 500,000 Manufacture and 100
Technology Limited N ordinary shares trading of colorants
BEeEEHRAA of HK$ | each and compounded
500,000 & i@ % plastic resins
BR1ET RELERREER
EEA MK

Ngai Hing Engineering Hong Kong 2,000,000 Manufacture, 76.2
Plastic Materials Limited ~ & /& ordinary shares trading, marketing
RETRZHAERLQA of HK$! each and promotion
2,000,000 & i f% of engineering
BR1ERL plastic products

NE-BE - -H5
ERREFHTRE
PRBER
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Place of

incorporation or

establishment/operation

“kind of legal entity

Issued and
fully paid

up share capital/

25 FEWBAR (B)

Effective percentage
of equity

held indirectly

EmRI registered capital by the Company
Name BUIREEHIE BEITR Principal activities AATBESES
&% EAEE HBERE EREX IREK CERRFESH
Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Hong Kong 1,000 Trading of plastic |00
Materials Limited BB ordinary shares materials and
REBBEHARAG of HK$ | each pigments
1,000 &38R BEEBBRH
FR1ET REH
500,000 (Note a)
non-voting (Ftixa)
deferred shares
of HK$ | each
500,000 & % S 1&
R ER1ET
Shanghai Ngai Hing Plastic  The PRC HK$ 12,000,000 Manufacture and 100
Materials Co., Ltd. " wholly foreign- 12,000,000 7% 7T sale of colorants
FEREBRBRA owned enterprise and compounded
ARAT] Ha plastic resins
"HEBELR BUERHEEEE
RaeakElE
Tsing Tao Ngai Hing Plastic  The PRC HK$ 10,500,000 Manufacture and 85
Materials Co., Ltd. * sino-foreign 10,500,000 # T sale of colorants
BEEREZRBRRY equity joint and compounded
ERAR venture plastic resins
i HERHEREH
"HHRELE REEAKHERE
Ngai Hing PlastChem Hong Kong 2,000,000 Manufacture and 72
Company Limited B ordinary shares sale of
REB(BRRAR of HK$ | each PVC compounds
2,000,000 ¥ A% HiER
FRI1ET % PVC BRL
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25 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Notes:

@

()

The holders of the non-voting deferred shares in Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials
Limited (“NHH") shall not be entitled to any participation in the profits or
surplus assets of NHH and they are not entitled to receive notice of or attend or
vote at any general meeting of NHH in respect of their holdings of such deferred

shares.

Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited has been granted an option by the
holders of the non-voting deferred shares to acquire these shares for an

aggregate cash consideration of HK$4.

The above table includes the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of
the Directors, principally affected the results of the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group.To give details of other subsidiaries would,

in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

The aggregate net assets of subsidiaries not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
under statutory requirements amounted to approximately 27.7% (2003: 30.3%) of

the Group's total net assets.

25 FEMBAT ()
BisE -

(a)

(b)

(c)

REZBRAARAF ([RA)) ERE
HEERNZBAABR2RREZR
FRFBREESR  FREREEEZ
EEBRHUBMRERRARBSESHLF
REBRRAGINELRE -

Ngai Hing (International) Company
Limited AR & @ B4E THERTIE
BEROHEARLTBEZERM 2
e -

FRIHESRRHUAFEEERNE
EYETENAENEEFEZTES
DZALRKRBAR - EERAMHT
EttM B ARz H#EETERBR
Eo

WHaFBRERBAEEHAEHAA
EEZZHMBRARCEEFEABER
EEEEFELABNES 2 TEAL
(CFF=ZF:HHZ=TED) -
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The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years are as

| SRR

ARERBEZNERBER 2 XA EERA

follows: EBmT :
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FHET FHET
Results E4
Profit attributable
to shareholders REREMLEF 13,279 40,462 38,408 15,798 33,884
Assets and liabilities BEERERE
Total assets BEEE 536,655 482,486 380,530 342,76 331,396
Total liabilities BfEEE (241,657) (184,980) (102,199) (93,928) (91,559)
Minority interests G L T (8.814) (6,784) (5,371) (3,505) (1,150)
Shareholders’ funds R 286,184 290,722 272,960 245,328 238,687
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NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials Limited
Hong Kong Colour Technology Limited

Ngai Hing (GZFTZ) Trading Co., Ltd.

Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic Materials Limited
Ngai Hing PlastChem Company Limited

Hong Kong Office:

Unit 3, 6th Floor, Hopeful Factory Centre
|0 Wo Shing Street

Fotan, New Territories

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2693 1663

Fax: (852) 2694 0877

Website: http://www.nhh.com.hk

E-mail address: info@nhh.com.hk

Hong Kong Factory:

|7 Dai Fu Street

Tai Po Industrial Estate

Tai Po, New Territories

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2693 1772 / 2660 0208
Fax: (852) 2694 0017 / 2667 4831

Dongguan Factory (Colorants operation):
Chi Ling Industrial Zone, Hou Jie Town
Dongguan City

Guangdong Province

The People's Republic of China

Tel: (86) 769-558 8755 Zip: 523940
Fax: (86) 769-558 1756

Dongguan Factory (PVC operation):
Chi Ling Industrial Zone, Hou Jie Town
Dongguan City

Guangdong Province

The People's Republic of China

Tel: (86) 769-587 8800 Zip: 523940
Fax: (86) 769-587 8700

RETERAT
(RERZZMALZERRAR)
RABBRABRAF
HEeEXARAT
RE(BNREE) EZERAT
REIRERARAR
REBELARAT

EENEE

&8

AR NR

REH 0%
BEIEFOEIE

E 55 1 (852) 2693 1663

{8 H : (852) 2694 0877

#1F : httpi//ww.nhh.com.hk
EF B3t ¢ info@nhh.comhk

FHEREL

E&

MRAE

KRBT £

AEHITH

T 3E ¢ (852) 2693 1772/ 2660 0208
{EHE : (852) 2694 0017 / 2667 4831

REEI (BERBER)

FEARKANE

BERE

RED

BEHRFHIER

E5E ¢ (86) 769-558 8755 IR : 523940
B H : (86) 769-558 1756

REMIL (PVCER) !

FEARKME

BRE

L

BHEFAETIERE

EE © (86) 769-587 8800 WEMRSE © 523940
B E : (86) 769-587 8700
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Guangzhou Office:

Room 1117, I'I/F

Jie Tai Plaza Management Office
218-222 Zhong Shan Liu Road
Guangzhou

The People’s Republic of China

Tel: (86) 20-8132 0696 Zip:510180
Fax: (86) 20-8132 0695

Shanghai Office:

Unit E, |6th Floor

Zhao Feng Universe Building

No.1800 Zhongshan West Road
Shanghai

The People's Republic of China

Tel: (86) 21-6440 0997  Zip: 200233
Fax: (86) 21-6440 0977

Shanghai Factory:

No.388 Xingu Road

Qingpu Industrial Zone

Shanghai

The People’s Republic of China

Tel: (86) 21-6921 3333 Zip: 201700
Fax: (86) 21-6921 5555

Qingdao Factory:

Haier (Jiao Zhou) International Industrial Zone

Jiao Zhou, ECO & TEC Development Zone, Qingdao
The People’s Republic of China

Tel: (86) 532-727 3100  Zip: 266300

Fax: (86) 532-727 3110

Chengdu Office:

4th Floor, Huaxia Building

No.| Jianshe North Road Section 3
Chengdu City, Sichuan Province

The People's Republic of China

Tel: (86) 28-8328 5026 Zip: 610051
Fax: (86) 28-8328 5126
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